

Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022



# Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **General Information**

Country of incorporation and domicile	Namibia
Nature of business and principal activities	Reinsurance
Directors	F Kisting (Chairperson) B Muteka (Deputy Chairperson) P A Martin (Managing Director) A Munyika C Loots L Usiku R Hanghuwo S Makando
Registered office	Erf 8571, Corner of Julius K. Nyerere Street and Feld Street Windhoek Namibia
Business address	Erf 8571, Corner of Julius K. Nyerere Street and Feld Street Windhoek Namibia
Postal address	PO Box 716 Windhoek
Holding entity	The Namibian Ministry of Finance
Ultimate holding entity	Government of the Republic of Namibia
Auditors	PricewaterhouseCoopers Registered Accountants and Auditors Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Secretary	Gladice Pickering
Company registration number	99/369

# Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Contents

	Page
Directors' Responsibilities and Approval	3
Independent Auditor's Report	4 - 6
Directors' Report	7 - 8
Statement of Financial Position	9
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income	10
Statement of Changes in Equity	11
Statement of Cash Flows	12
Accounting Policies	13 - 24
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements	25 - 62

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

#### **Directors' Responsibilities and Approval**

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of Namibia to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors' are responsible for implementing controls and security to maintain the integrity of the company's website. The directors of the company are responsible for the controls over, and the security of the website and, where applicable, for establishing and controlling the process for electronically distributing annual reports and other financial information to shareholders. The board of director is also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance as to the reliability of the annual financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and loss. The systems are implemented and monitored by experienced personnel.

The directors have reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2023 and, in light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors and their report is presented on pages 4 to 6.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 9 to 62, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors. The annual financial statements have been authorised for issue by the board of directors and no authority was given to anyone to amend the annual financial statements after the date of issue. The financial statements were signed on behalf of the board of directors by:

aine)

Director

Director Date Windhoek

Director



# Independent auditor's report

To the Members of Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited

### Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (the Company) as at 31 March 2022, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

#### What we have audited

Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited's financial statements set out on pages 7 to 62 comprise:

- the directors' report for the year ended 31 March 2022;
- the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;
- the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
- the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
- the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
- the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

# Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standard) (Code of Conduct) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Conduct and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Namibia.

# Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled "Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Registered Auditors 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, Khomas Region, Republic of Namibia P O Box 1571, Windhoek, Khomas Region, Republic of Namibia T:+ 264 (61) 284 1000, F: +264 (61) 284 1001, www.pwc.com/na

Country Senior Partner: Chantell N Husselmann

The Firm's principal place of business is at 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, Republic of Namibia, Khomas Region, Republic of Namibia Partners: Louis van der Riet, Anna EJ Rossouw (Partner in charge: Coast), Gerrit Esterhuyse, Samuel N Ndahangwapo, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P Nel, Hannes van den Berg, Willem A Burger

Practice Number 9406, VAT reg no. 00203281-015



Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022". The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

# Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

# Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.



- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Price Waterhouse Coopers

PricewaterhouseCoopers Registered Accountants and Auditors Chartered Accountants (Namibia) Per: Hans Hashgen Partner Windhoek Date: 9 November 2022

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Directors' Report**

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022.

#### 1. Nature of business

Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited was incorporated in Namibia with interests in the Insurance industry. The company operates in Namibia.

The corporation is the only reinsurer in Namibia and provides reinsurance to local and international insurance companies. In terms of the Namibian National Reinsurance Corporation Act, insurance companies are obliged to present 20% of all their underwritten insurance to the corporation. The corporation provides both long-term and short-term reinsurance. Short-term reinsurance is provided for fire, aviation, guarantee, miscellaneous, personal lines, special riot risk, medical, motor, marine, liability and property in the form of reinsurance treaties.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the company's business from the prior year.

#### 2. Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year except where stated.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these annual financial statements.

#### 3. Share capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

#### 4. Dividends

The company's dividend policy is to consider an interim and a final dividend in respect of each financial year. At its discretion, the board of directors may consider a special dividend, where appropriate. Depending on the perceived need to retain funds for expansion or operating purposes, the board of directors may pass on the payment of dividends.

Dividends declared and paid to the shareholder in the current financial year amounted to N\$ nil (2021: N\$ 10,000,000).

#### 5. Shareholder

The corporation is wholly-owned by the Government of the Republic of Namibia (Ministry of Finance).

#### 6. Directorate

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Directors		Nationality	Changes
F Kisting (Chairperson)	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
B Muteka (Deputy Chairperson)	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
P A Martin (Managing Director)	Executive	Namibian	
A Munyika	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
C Loots	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
L Usiku	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
R Hanghuwo	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Appointed 1 September 2021
S Makando	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	
A Beukes	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021
F Tjivau	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Deceased on 07 July 2021
H Mbako	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021
L D Kapere	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021
T K lindji	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021
T J A Saunderson	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021
N J Tshitayi	Non-executive Independent	Namibian	Resigned 1 September 2021

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Directors' Report**

There have been no changes to the directorate for the year under review.

#### 7. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.

#### 8. Litigation statement

The corporation becomes involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of business.

The corporation is currently involved in litigation between itself, The Government of the Republic of Namibia and the Insurance industry related to the Namibre Act. Please also refer to notes 28.1 and 34.

#### 9. Secretary

The company secretary is Ms Gladice Pickering.

Ms Ntwala Mwilima resigned on 15 July 2021, and Ms Gladice Pickering was appointed on 15 July 2021.

#### 10. Terms of appointment of the auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers continued in office as auditor for the corporation for 2022 and will continue in office in accordance with Section 278 (2) of the Namibian Companies Act.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022

		2022	2021 Restated *
	Note	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
Assets			
Property, plant and equipment	5	42 561	43 033
Intangible assets	6	9 170	10 308
Held to maturity investments	7	29 099	56 912
Investments at fair value through profit or loss	8	295 151	279 411
Reinsurance assets	9	157 698	94 128
Insurance and other receivables	10	349 022	224 629
Current tax receivable	11	10 886	15 235
Deferred acquisition costs	12	17 538	31 160
Staff loans and other prepayments	13	1 445	1 535
Cash and cash equivalents	14	71 177	12 933
Total Assets	-	983 747	769 284
Equity and Liabilities			
Equity		~~ ~~~	~~ ~~~
Share capital	15	20 000	20 000
Reserves	16 <b>-</b> 18	109 846	110 348
Retained income	_	120 881	133 814
	-	250 727	264 162
Liabilities			
Deferred tax	19	18 383	8 675
Reinsurance and other payables	20	178 544	60 353
Insurance liabilities	21	360 440	436 094
Provisions	22	175 653	-
Total Liabilities	-	733 020	505 122
Total Equity and Liabilities	-	983 747	769 284

\* Refer to note 36 for further information.

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

		2022	2021 Restated *
	Note	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
Gross earned premiums	23	752 905	556 047
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers	23	(303 665)	(196 246)
Net insurance premium revenue		449 240	359 801
Commission income	24	71 705	102 018
Investment income	25	14 330	15 239
Sundry income	24	363	171
Fair value adjustments	8	5 145	5 334
Other income		91 543	122 762
Net income		540 783	482 563
Gross benefits and claims incurred	26	(500 435)	(166 814)
Claims ceded to reinsurers	26	271 766	27 021
Gross change in insurance liabilities	26	(142 253)	(39 880)
Changes in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers	26	107 286	20 385
Net benefits and claims		(263 636)	(159 288)
Commission paid	27	(181 011)	(233 116)
Foreign exchange losses	28	(151)	(1 299)
Other operating expenses	28	(89 261)	(63 891)
Other expenses		(270 423)	(298 306)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses	28	(534 059)	(457 594)
Profit before taxation		6 724	24 969
Taxation	32	(20 159)	(15 326)
(Loss) profit for the year		(13 435)	9 643
Other comprehensive income:			
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:			
Gains on property revaluation Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified		-	490 (157)
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss		-	333
Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation		-	333
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year		(13 435)	9 976

\* Refer to note 36 for further information.

The above statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Statement of Changes in Equity

	Share capital	Revaluation reserve NIC 1000	Staff welfare reserve N\$ 1000	General reserve N\$ 1000	Total reserves	Retained income M® 1000	Total equity
Balance at 1 April 2020	20 000	5 459	3 791	96 579	105 829	128 357	254 186
Profit for the year Other comprehensive income		333			333 -	9 643 -	9 643 333
Total comprehensive income for the year	•	333		•	333	9 643	9 7 6
Transfer between reserves	1		(2 056)	6 242	4 186	(4 186)	1
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company recognised directly in equity	•		(2 056)	6 242	4 186	(4 186)	•
Balance at 1 April 2021	20 000	5 792	1 735	102 821	110 348	133 814	264 162
Loss for the year Other comprehensive income						(13 435) -	(13 435) -
Total comprehensive Loss for the year	•			•		(13 435)	(13 435)
Transfer between reserves	1	1	(502)		(202)	502	1
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company recognised directly in equity	•		(502)	•	(502)	502	•
Balance at 31 March 2022	20 000	5 792	1 233	102 821	109 846	120 881	250 727
Note	15	16	17	18			

\* Refer to note 36 for further information. The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

# Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Statement of Cash Flows**

		2022	2021 Restated *
	Note	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
Cash flows from operating activities			
Cash generated from operations	29	36 247	131 869
Tax paid	30	(6 102)	(11 337)
Net cash from operating activities		30 145	120 532
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	5	(1 703)	(3 467)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment	5	67	6
Purchase of intangible assets	6	(19)	(292)
Purchase of investments of investments held to maturity	7	-	(6 500)
Proceeds on maturation of investments held to maturity	7	29 905	2 156
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss	8	-	(162 614)
Proceeds on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	8		45 000
Net cash from investing activities		28 250	(125 711)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Dividends paid	31	-	(10 000)
Total cash movement for the year		58 395	(15 179)
Cash at the beginning of the year		12 933	29 411
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances		(151)	(1 299)
Total cash at end of the year	14	71 177	12 933
-			

\* Refer to note 36 for further information.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.

#### 1.1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual financial statements and the Companies Act of Namibia.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Namibia Dollars, which is the company's functional currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period except where stated.

#### 1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

#### Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, which would significantly affect the financial statements.

#### Key sources of estimation uncertainty

#### Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets.

#### Deficiency reserve provision

A deficiency reserve is set up for the life business as premiums are currently insufficient to cover claims, expenses and commission. A 12-month projection is assumed, allowing for current claims and expense ratios, as well as decrement assumptions. It is implicitly assumed that rates will be reviewed, premiums will increase and/or claims will reduce after 12 months.

#### Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted market prices are not available, are determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases, the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based on an appropriate assumption.

#### Covid-19 provision

No Covid-19 provision was allowed for in 2022 as the impact is expected to continue to reduce, and it is implicitly allowed for in the claim loss ratios of the IBNR and deficiency reserves

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Accounting Policies

#### 1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

#### Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors such as technological innovation, asset life cycles and maintenance programs. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

#### Impairment of insurance receivables

At each reporting date the company assesses insurance receivables to determine whether there is objective evidence that an insurance receivable or group of insurance receivables has been impaired.

For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the insurance receivables' recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the insurance receivables at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Debtors are deemed to be impaired if the amount becomes past due per the contractual obligation and management assessments indicates a possible impairment. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Where insurance receivables are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

#### Taxation

In terms of Section 45 of the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Act of 1998, the corporation is not liable to pay income taxation under Namibian legislation until such time that the general reserve fund is equal to or exceeds twice the amount of the authorized share capital. As the general reserve (after a transfer of profit before tax) has exceeded twice the amount of the authorized share capital since year ended 31 March 2014, the Corporation is liable for income taxation in the current year.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The corporation recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The corporation recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the corporation to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the corporation to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

#### Insurance liabilities

Insurance liabilities comprise a provision for unearned premium; provision for claims IBNR and provision for outstanding claims included in "Insurance contract liability" as one of the Insurance liabilities which are accounted for as disclosed in the following notes.

Information on the sensitivities of certain major assumptions in the underlying calculations can be found within the 'Insurance risk; section of note 3.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

#### Provision for unearned premiums

The provision for unearned premiums represents premiums received during the year which pertain to periods of risk extending beyond the end of the financial year. Management calculates the provision by estimating the proportion of annual premiums that relate to future periods with reference to the respective contracts in place.

Premiums are earned from the date the risk attaches, over the indemnity period, based on the pattern of the risk underwritten. Unearned premiums, which represent the proportion of premiums written in the current year which relate to risks that have not expired by the end of the financial year, are calculated on a time-proportionate basis for even risk contracts and other bases that best represent the unearned risk profile for uneven risk contracts.

#### Provision for claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR)

This refers to claims incurred but not yet reported at year end and is calculated by actuaries using statistical methods.

The provision for life IBNR has been calculated at 65% (2021: 10%) of premiums earned. A claims loss ratio approach, an accepted actuarial methodology, was used to calculate the liability. This is due to life insurance being a recent addition to the product offering of the business and accordingly there is currently insufficient claims data to analyse using the usual actuarial methodologies. This estimate is based on past experience and industry norms in Namibia and other African countries.

The provision for non-life IBNR has been calculated at 12.47% (2021: 18.88%) of premiums earned using a mix of loss ratio and actuarial methodologies using information on historical trends, past experience and industry norms in Namibia.

#### Provisions for outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are those which have incurred and reported but have not been settled at reporting date. The provision is calculated by management and is based on the estimated cost of actual outstanding claims received relating to the current year.

The insurers measure outstanding claims at the best estimate of the cost required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. This estimation of the cost takes into account average claims, average claims handling cost, a reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries, and other indicators such as inflation.

#### Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Deferred acquisition costs consist of commissions and other variable costs directly connected with the acquisition or renewal of insurance contracts. The deferred acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average term of the policies, from one to five years. Deferred acquisition costs are tested quarterly for impairment using the liability adequacy test as per IFRS 4. The deferred acquisition cost is not reinstated once written off.

#### Liability adequacy testing

In compliance with certain regulations governing the insurance sector in Namibia, the corporation must meet specific solvency ratios in the life and non-life insurance business, respectively. At each end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities net of related assets.

These solvency ratios are derived through actuarial calculations where insurance liabilities are quantified, gross and net of related assets, and subjected to a 'liability adequacy test'. In deriving the liability values, estimations and assumptions are made. For more information on the sensitivity surrounding these estimations, refer to 'Insurance risk' within note 3.

#### Revalued amount of land and buildings

Land and buildings are revalued to their fair value. Valuations of land and buildings are determined from market based evidence by appraisals undertaken by professional valuers. Revaluations are performed every three years and with such sufficiency that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

#### Estimation of Pipeline items

Pipeline premium in respect of a particular quarter represents premium written on proportional treaties during the quarter but not yet reported by ceding companies at the closing date of the quarter, as well as missing statements of previous quarters. It is generally estimated contract by contract, using annual premium estimates, adjusted for actual statements received to date. However, for practical reasons, statistical methods are also used to validate the overall figures.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provisions for pipeline losses are recognised within the IBNR reserves for the period.

Pipeline acquisition costs represent accrued acquisition costs relating to pipeline premiums. This is estimated contract by contract, by applying the contractual percentages to the pipeline premium.

#### Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the annual financial statements but are disclosed when as a result of past events. it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the corporation, but this will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not wholly within the corporations control.

#### Contingent liabilities

The corporation discloses a contingent liability when:

It has a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

It has a present obligation that arises from past events but not recognised because:

- It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle an obligation; and
- The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

#### **1.3** Property, plant and equipment

Property and equipment, excluding land are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, valuations by external independent appraisers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Revaluations are performed every three years. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the building and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the buildings.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of the asset less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

#### 1.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
  - there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
  - there is an ability to use or sell it.
  - it will generate probable future economic benefits.
  - there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
  - the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis.

Item	Useful life
Computer software	10 years

#### 1.5 Financial instruments

The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held for trading
- Held-to-maturity investment
- Loans and receivables
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.

#### Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

#### Subsequent measurement

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or loss for the period.

Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include dividends and interest.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income when the company's right to receive payment is established.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

#### Fair value determination

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

#### Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator of impairment. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity as a reclassification adjustment to other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as available-for-sale.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

#### Insurance and other receivables

Insurance receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the insurance receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a insurance receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for insurance receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Insurance and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

#### Reinsurance and other payables

Reinsurance and other payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration paid less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. These include amounts due to agents, brokers and insurance contract holders.

Reinsurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

#### Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at amortised cost.

When bank balances are denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the bank balances are determined in the foreign currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Namibia Dollar equivalent using the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Any resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

#### Borrowings

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

#### Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those which were either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin, or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit-taking exists. Investments classified as fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at cost and subsequently re-measured to fair value based on quoted prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. All related realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding held for trading investments is reported as investment income.

#### Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity financial investments are those which carry fixed or determinable payments and have fixed maturities and which the Corporation has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowances for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortisation and losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the profit or loss.

#### Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement at cost, receivables are subsequently remeasured to amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

#### Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

#### Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Corporation derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Corporation's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The condition is met when the liability is settled by paying the creditors, or when the Corporation is released from primary responsibility for the financial liability either by process of law or by creditor.

#### 1.6 Tax

#### Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.6 Tax (continued)

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Tax assets and liabilities are offset at the taxpayer level and in same jurisdiction as the law allows net settlement. The different balances are shown accordingly either as assets or liabilities on the statement of financial position.

#### Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset at the taxpayer level and in same jurisdiction as the law allows net settlement. The different balances are shown accordingly either as assets or liabilities on the statement of financial position.

#### Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that the tax arises from:

- a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or
- a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

#### 1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

#### 1.8 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity were there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity. Any amounts received from the issue of shares in excess of par value is classified as 'share premium' in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability in the company in which they are declared.

#### 1.9 Employee benefits

#### Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care and pension), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

#### Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the corporation before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The corporation recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value. Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

#### 1.10 Provisions and contingencies

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.10 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingencies are disclosed in note 34.

#### 1.11 Revenue

#### Net insurance premium revenue

Net insurance premium revenue comprise of the following components:

- Gross earned premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of the cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums receivable in respect of business written in prior accounting periods as well as unearned premiums relating to future accounting periods.
- Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums and is included in insurance liabilities in the statement of financial liability.
- Premiums ceded to reinsurers comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognised on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods as well as unearned reinsurance premiums relating to future accounting periods.

#### Pipeline premium

Pipeline premium in respect of a particular quarter represents premium written on proportional treaties during the year but not yet reported by ceding companies at the closing date of the quarter, as well as missing statements of previous quarters. It is generally estimated contract by contract, using annual premium estimates, adjusted for actual statements received to date. However, for practical reasons, statistical methods are also used to validate the overall figures.

Pipeline acquisition costs represent accrued acquisition costs relating to pipeline premium. This is estimated by applying the contractual percentages to the pipeline premium.

#### Commission income

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

#### Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and dividend income. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised on the date that the corporation's right to receive payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

#### Other income

Other income comprises of rental income in the prior year and sundry income. Other income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the corporation and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received.

#### 1.12 Translation of foreign currencies

#### Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Namibia Dollars, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.12 Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

In circumstances where the company receives or pays an amount in foreign currency in advance of a transaction, the transaction date for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, income or expense is the date on which the company initially recognised the non-monetary item arising on payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, company determines a date of transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Namibia Dollars by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Namibia Dollar and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

#### 1.13 Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

#### Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not; related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims; a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

#### Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant contract.

#### Fees and commission expense

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees are recognised as expenses as incurred. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

#### Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

In reinsurance, those costs directly associated with the acquisition of new contracts, mainly comprising commissions, are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. The deferred acquisition costs are therefore recorded as assets on the statement of financial position to the extent that contracts are profitable. They are amortised on the basis of the residual term of the contracts in non-life.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period and are treated as a change in an accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. DAC are also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

DAC are derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed off.

(Registration number 99/369) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# **Accounting Policies**

#### 1.14 Reinsurance contracts

The corporation cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. This includes the reinsurer's share of unearned premiums, provision for outstanding claims and provision for claims incurred but not reported. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer's policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, reinsurance assets are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the corporation may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the corporation will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income immediately at the date of purchase.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the corporation of its obligations to policyholders. The corporation also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for non-life insurance contracts where applicable.

Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly in the statement of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial liabilities that are recognised based on the consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or fees to be retained by the reinsured.

Investment income on these contracts is accounted for using the effective interest rate method when accrued.

#### 1.15 Dividend distribution

Dividend declared to the Government of the Republic of Namibia are recognised as a liability in the annual financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the directors of the corporation to the extent they are unpaid.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations

#### 2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

#### Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 4

An insurer applying the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 shall apply the new requirements of IFRS 9 concerning situations where a change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability is required by interest rate benchmark reform.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

#### Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 7

The amendment sets out additional disclosure requirements related to interest rate benchmark reform.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

#### Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9

When there is a change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability that is required by interest rate benchmark reform then the entity is required to apply paragraph B5.4.5 as a practical expedient. This expedient is only available for such changes in basis of determining contractual cash flows.

Additional temporary exemptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements as well as additional rules for accounting for qualifying hedging relationships and the designation of risk components have been added to hedge relationships specifically impacted by interest rate benchmark reform.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

#### Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 16

If there is a lease modification as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform, then as a practical expedient the lesse is required to apply paragraph 42 of IFRS 16 to account for the changes by remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised lease payment. The amendment only applies to modifications as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

#### Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IAS 39

Temporary exemptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements as well as additional rules for accounting for qualifying hedging relationships and the designation of financial items as hedged items have been added to hedge relationships specifically impacted by interest rate benchmark reform.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

#### COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16

The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in an amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. Lessees may elect not to assess whether a rent concession that meets the conditions in paragraph 46B is a lease modification. If this election is applied, then any change in lease payments must be accounted for in the same way as a change would be accounted for it were not a lease modification. This practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if:

• the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payment affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 and
- there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

#### 2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen to apply on effective date the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022 or later periods:

#### Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

The amendment adds an additional requirement for transactions which will not give rise to the recognition of a deferred tax asset or liability on initial recognition. Previously, deferred tax would not be recognised on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit or loss. The additional requirement provides that the transaction, at the time of the transaction must not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Disclosure of accounting policies: Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2.

IAS 1 was amended to require that only material accounting policy information shall be disclosed in the annual financial statements. The amendment will not result in changes to measurement or recognition of financial statement items, but management will undergo a review of accounting policies to ensure that only material accounting policy information is disclosed.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Definition of accounting estimates: Amendments to IAS 8

The definition of accounting estimates was amended so that accounting estimates are now defined as "monetary amounts in annual financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty."

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1

The amendment changes the requirements to classify a liability as current or non-current. If an entity has the right at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period, then the liability is classified as non-current.

If this right is subject to conditions imposed on the entity, then the right only exists, if, at the end of the reporting period, the entity has complied with those conditions.

In addition, the classification is not affected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. Therefore, if the right exists, the liability is classified as non-current even if management intends or expects to settle the liability within twelve months of the reporting period. Additional disclosures would be required in such circumstances.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The IFRS establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Accounting policy papers, actuarial methodologies and disclosure requirements are set to be prepared within the next few months and will be implemented before the end of the 2023. The corporation plans on engaging the auditors on the policy and methodology papers as they are prepared, regard to the transition to IFRS 17. Auditing of the principles in these policy papers is set to start in 2023. The project team remains up to date, and closely monitors, all technical developments from the IASB and industry to evaluate the effects of such developments and, where applicable, will align the policy and methodology papers planned accordingly. The tax implications regarding the adoption of IFRS 17 are also being considered.

The transition to IFRS 17 and the financial impact assessment will remain a key focus during the 2023 year. The corporation is in the early stages of project planning for the implementation and anticipates finalisation by the end of 2023. A roadmap for transition and the dual reporting run will be prepared and shared with business stakeholders within the next few months.

The IFRS 17 project team will focus on the following key areas during the 2023:

- Complete the system development and key controls required to implement IFRS17;
- Produce and request business sign-off, as well as external audit sign-off of transition balances;
- Commence with an IFRS 4 and IFRS 17 dual reporting run;
- Update the budgeting process to ensure alignment with IFRS 17;
- Finalise the layout and disclosure of the IFRS 17 compliant annual financial statements;
- Finalise the management reporting and key performance measures;
- Continue engaging with the executive committee and business through various training initiatives; and
- Finalise and implement future financial and data governance processes and accountabilities.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

#### Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 1

A subsidiary that uses the cumulative translation differences exemption, may elect in its financial statements, to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary.

The effective date of the company is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 9

The amendment concerns fees in the '10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities. Accordingly, in determining the relevant fees, only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender are to be included.

The effective date of the company is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: Amendments to IAS 16

The amendment relates to examples of items which are included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. Prior to the amendment, the costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly were included in the cost of the asset after deducting the net proceeds of selling any items which were produced during the test phase. The amendment now requires that any such proceeds and the cost of those items must be included in profit or loss in accordance with the related standards. Disclosure of such amounts in now specifically required.

The effective date of the company is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract: Amendments to IAS 37

The amendment defined the costs that are included in the cost of fulfilling a contract when determining the amount recognised as an onerous contract. It specifies that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. These are both the incremental costs of fulfilling the contract as well as an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example depreciation allocation).

The effective date of the company is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's annual financial statements.

#### Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

The amendment provides a temporary exemption that permits, but does not require, insurers, under specified criteria, to apply IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, rather than IFRS 9 Financial Instruments until the adoption of IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts which is the IFRS replacing IFRS 4, with a proposed effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The corporation, who has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9 (other than the paragraphs required) and whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance given that more than 90% of its total carrying amount of liabilities is connected with insurance for its annual period ending 31 March 2016 and for all subsequent periods, meet the specified criteria for this exemption and have chosen to defer the adoption of IFRS 9. The total carrying amount of liabilities connected with insurance is made up of liabilities under IFRS 4 (N\$ 736.4 million as at March 2022) and a deferred tax liability (N\$ 18.4 million as at 31 March 2022).

Additional information is required to be disclosed as a result of this exemption which is provided below:

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

#### 2022

#### The fair value and change in fair value for the two groups of financial assets

Figures in N\$ '000	Amortised Cost	Fair Value Through Profit and Loss	Fair Value
<b>Held to maturity investments</b> Opening value Additions	56 91 (27 81		- 56 912 - (27 813)
Closing value	29 09	,	- 29 099
<b>Insurance and short-term receivables</b> Opening value Additions Disposals and maturities	224 62 349 02 (224 62	2	- 224 629 - 349 022 - (224 629)
Closing value	349 02	2	- 349 022
Fair value through profit or loss Opening value Additions Increase in fair value Disposals and maturities		- 279 4 <sup>-</sup> - 10 59 - 5 1 <sup>2</sup>	10 595
Closing value		- 295 15	51 295 151

#### Investments held to collect interest and principal payments only as at 31 March, 2022

	Credit Risk rating	Carrying Amount / Fair Value
Insurance receivables Republic of Namibia bonds	not rated Baa3	349 022 29 099
Standard Bank Fixed Deposit Account	BB+	
		378 121

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

#### 2021

#### The fair value and change in fair value for the two groups of financial assets

Figures in N\$ '000	Amortised Cost	Fair Value Through Profit and Loss	Fair Value
<b>Held to maturity investments</b> Opening value Additions Increase/(decrease) in fair value Disposals and maturities	48 020 8 886	-	- 48 026 - 8 886 
Short-term insurance	56 912	2	- 56 912
Insurance and short-term receivables Opening value Additions Increase in fair value Disposals and maturities Short-term insurance	314 882 224 629 (314 882 <b>224 62</b> 9	9 - 2)	- 314 882 - 224 629 - (314 882) - <b>224 629</b>
Fair value through profit or loss Opening value Additions Increase in fair value Disposals and maturities Short-term insurance		- 147 070 - 170 12 - 5 33 - (45 00) - <b>277 53</b>	7 170 127 4 5 334 0) (45 000)

#### Investments held to collect interest and principal payments only as at 31 March, 2021

	Credit Risk rating	Carrying Amount / Fair Value
Insurance receivables	not rated	224 629
Republic of Namibia bonds	Baa3	28 974
Standard Bank Fixed Deposit Account	BB+	27 938
		281 541

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

#### IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurements of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a "fair value through other comprehensive income" (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

- All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on outstanding principal, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
- With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effect of the changes of the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
- In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
  incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
  expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
  credit risk since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
  credit losses are recognised.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. However, the corporation elected, under the amendments to IFRS 4, to apply the temporary exemption from IFRS 9, thereby deferring the initial application date of IFRS 9 to align with the initial application of IFRS 17.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2023 annual financial statements.

The corporation has established an IFRS 17/IFRS 9 project team that will provide oversight and governance on the implementation of the standard. Refer to 'IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' for further information.

# Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 3. Financial instruments and risk management

#### **Categories of financial instruments**

#### Categories of financial assets

#### 2022

Figures in N\$ '000	Note	Held to maturity investments	Fair value through profit or loss - held for trade	Loans and receivables	Total
Staff loans	13	-	-	1 445	1 445
Insurance and other receivables	10	-	-	349 022	349 022
Reinsurance assets	9	-	-	157 698	157 698
Cash and cash equivalents	14	-	-	71 177	71 177
Investments	7&8	29 099	295 151	-	324 250
		29 099	295 151	579 342	903 592

#### 2021

Figures in N\$ '000	Note	Held to maturity investments	Fair value through profit or loss - held for trade	Loans and receivables	Total
Staff loans	13	-	-	1 535	1 535
Insurance and other receivables	10	-	-	224 629	224 629
Reinsurance assets	9	-	-	94 128	94 128
Cash and cash equivalents	14	-	-	12 933	12 933
Investments	7&8	56 912	279 411	-	336 323
		56 912	279 411	333 225	669 548

#### Categories of financial liabilities

#### 2022

Figures in N\$ '000	Note	Amortised cost	Total
Reinsurance and other payables Insurance liabilities Provisions	20 21 22	178 544 360 440 175 653	178 544 360 440 175 653
		714 637	714 637
2021			
Figures in N\$ '000	Note	Amortised cost	Total
Reinsurance and other payables Insurance liabilities	20 21	60 353 436 094	60 353 436 094
		496 447	496 447

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

#### Capital risk management

The corporation's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the corporation's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The corporation must comply with certain regulatory requirements which require that the corporation maintain a minimum solvency margin where the aggregate value of its assets exceeds its liabilities by not less than N\$ 4 000 or 15%, whichever is the greater amount. The corporation ensures that its solvency requirement is met at all times.

#### Financial risk management

#### Overview

The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk;
- Liquidity risk; and
- Market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk).

The corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Market risk includes interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk.

The corporation's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the corporation's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (corporation treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors. Corporation treasury identifies, evaluates and manages financial risks in close co-operation with the corporation's operating units. The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

#### Credit risk

Credit risk arises out of investments, reinsurance assets, insurance receivables, staff loans and prepayments and cash and cash equivalents.

The corporation only invests with reputable institutions with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. The credit quality of insurance receivables are individually assessed using a credit rating scorecard which takes into account the financial position, past experience and other factors.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end are presented in the table below. The amounts represent the maximum exposure to credit risks. All amounts are presented net of impairments where applicable. Refer to the respective notes for further information. The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

			2022			2021	
Figures in N\$ '000		Gross carrying amount	Credit loss allowance	Amortised cost / fair va <b>l</b> ue	Gross carrying amount	Credit loss allowance	Amortised cost / fair value
Staff loans and other prepayments	13	1 405	-	1 405	1 021	-	1 021
Investments at fair value through profit or loss	8	295 151	-	295 151	279 411	-	279 411
Investments held to maturity	7	29 099	-	29 099	56 912	-	56 912
Insurance and other receivables	10	349 022	-	349 022	227 659	(3 030)	224 629
Cash and cash equivalents	14	71 177	-	71 177	12 933	-	12 933
		745 854	-	745 854	577 936	(3 030)	574 906

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

#### Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating units of the corporation in and aggregated by corporation finance. Corporation finance monitors rolling forecasts of the corporation's liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such forecasting takes into consideration debt financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance with internal statement of financial position ratio targets and external regulatory requirements. The corporation is required to maintain a minimum solvency margin.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above balance required for working capital management is transferred to corporation treasury who then invests surplus cash in money market deposits and government securities, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient head-room as determined by the forecasting process.

The table below analyses the corporation's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

#### 2022

Figures in N\$ '000		Less than 1 year	Total	Carrying amount
<b>Current liabilities</b> Reinsurance and other payables Insurance liabilities	20 21	178 544 360 440 <b>538 984</b>	178 544 360 440 <b>538 984</b>	178 544 360 440 <b>538 984</b>
2021				
Figures in N\$ '000		Less than 1 year	Total	Carrying amount
Current liabilities Reinsurance and other payables Insurance liabilities	20 21	60 353 436 094	60 353 436 094	60 353 436 094
	-	496 447	496 447	496 447

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

# Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

#### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

#### Foreign currency risk

The corporation operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Zambian Kwacha, Malawi Kwacha, Botswana Pula and the Kenya Shillings.

The corporation does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

The corporation reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments, on an ongoing basis.

A reasonable movement in the exchange rates would not have had a material effect on profit or loss.

Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2022 (Figures in N\$ '000)	Insurance and other receivables	Reinsurance and other payables	Total
US Dollar	113 822	(195 270)	(81 448)
Botswana Pula	6 426	(11 025)	(4 599)
Malawian Kwacha	237	(407)	(170)
Kenyan Shillings	21 697	(37 223)	(15 526)
Tanzania Shillings	5 424	(9 305)	(3 881)
Lesotho Loti	65	(111)	(46)
Mozambican Metical	60	(103)	(43)
Nigerian Naira	2 841	(4 873)	(2 032)
Swazi Lilangeni	2 542	(4 362)	(1 820)
Tunisian Dinar	2 536	(4 352)	(1 816)
SA Rand	2 048	(3 513)	(1 465)
	157 698	(270 544)	(112 846)

Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2021 (Figures in N\$ '000)	Insurance and other receivables	Reinsurance and other payables	Total
US Dollar	8 678	(2 266)	6 412
Botswana Pula Zambian Kwacha	325 348	(85) (91)	240 257
Malawian Kwacha	-	-	-
Kenyan Shillings	617	(161)	456
Tanzania Shillings	188	(49)	139
	10 156	(2 652)	7 504

#### Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a variable rate financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market rates. Interest on investments contributes a significant portion of earnings and is necessary for liquidity management. Risk related to interest rate changes on finance lease liabilities is not considered to be significant.

The corporation's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily arises from interest-bearing investments and cash and cash equivalents, both of which have variable risk rates. Had the interest rates increased (decreased) by 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis points), the after-tax affect on profit would have been a decrease (increase) of N\$ 1 567 385 (2021: N\$ 1 567 385).

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

### Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

### Insurance risk

The corporation is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the nature of its business activities. The purpose of the corporation's risk management process is to ensure that the operations that expose it to risk are consistent with the corporation's strategy, business objectives and risk philosophy while maintaining an appropriate risk/reward balance and enhancing stakeholder value which does not compromise the corporation's ability to pay claims or fulfil policyholder commitments.

The objective of the insurance risk management policy is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available in order to cover the liabilities that arise out of insurance contracts. The principal risk which the corporation faces is that the actual amount and timing of insurance claims and benefit payments may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency and severity of claims, particularly relating to foreign business.

The corporation has developed policies and procedures to manage its risk within an Asset Liability Management ('ALM') framework. By utilising the ALM framework to manage assets and liabilities, the corporation manages the mismatch that can occur due to liquidity or economic factors, such as interest rate changes.

The corporation mitigates this risk by diversifying its reinsurance across the portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas so as to avoid a concentration of risk in any one subset within the portfolio. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance management systems. The reinsurance portfolio includes highly rated, highly liquid securities.

As part of risk mitigation process the corporation purchases reinsurance and cedes it on proportional and non-proportional basis to reduce exposure. The spread is that proportional constitutes 74% (2021: 80%), non-proportional 4% (2021: 3%) and facultative 22% (2021: 17%).

The corporation underwrites both life and non-life insurance contracts.

Due to the long-term nature of the life insurance business, the corporation accepts market risk which arises due to mismatches between assets and liabilities, provided it is managed within specific risk tolerances and limits.

The corporation enters into retrocession agreements with other reinsurers to mitigate the risk exposure.

Included in the non-life insurance business is aviation, fire, liabilities, marine, motor, miscellaneous, personal lines and medical insurance. Fire (which includes engineering class of business), personal lines and liabilities businesses are the highest contributors to gross written premium. The fire, personal lines personal lines and motor businesses contribute the highest to loss ratio.

These exposures are strategically mitigated through specific risk selection and underwriting methodologies which diversifies risk across the geographical areas. The corporation has selected specific markets in Eastern, Central and Southern Africa for foreign business underwriting.

The corporation avoids underwriting risks in areas which are prone to hurricanes, earthquakes, major floods and unstable political environment. Furthermore, the corporation has event limit clauses in the underwriting slips.

The concentration of life and non-life insurance risk by insurance type before and after reinsurance is summarised in the following tables.

<b>2022</b> (Figures in N\$ '000)	Gross liability	Reinsurance asset	Net liability
Life	(74 735)	51 286	(23 449)
Fire	(115 044)	39 644	(75 400)
Health	(1 905)	656	(1 249)
Marine	(21 876)	7 539	(14 337)
Motor miscellaneous	(145 268)	58 017	(87 251)
Nasria	(1 324)	456	(868)
Aviation	(289)	100	(189)
	(360 441)	157 698	(202 743)

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

<b>2021</b> (Figures in N\$ '000)	Gross liability	Reinsurance asset	Net liability
Life	(29 447)	6 356	(23 091)
Fire	(388 463)	83 847	(304 616)
Health	(1 354)	292	(1 062)
Marine	(4 808)	1 038	(3 770)
Motor miscellaneous	(11 855)	2 559	(9 296)
Nasria	(130)	28	(102)
Aviation	(37)	8	(29)
	(436 094)	94 128	(341 966)

The geographical concentration of the corporation's life and non-life contract liabilities is noted below. The disclosure is based on the countries where the business is written. The analysis would not be materially different if based on the countries in which the counterparties are situated.

<b>2022</b> (Figures in N\$ '000)	Gross insurance liability	Reinsurance assets	Net liability
Namibian	(270 543)		(126 911)
Foreign	(89 898)	14 066	(75 832)
	(360 441)	157 698	(202 743)
<b>2021</b> (Figures in N\$ '000)	Gross insurance liability	Reinsurance asset	Net liability
Namibian	(312 683)	45 631	(267 052)
Foreign	(14 706)	4 670	(10 036)
	(327 389)	50 301	(277 088)

Typically, the claim process is completed within 12 months for non-life contracts.

### Sensitivity analysis for short-term insurance liabilities

The claims IBNR liability is statistically calculated using certain assumptions, refer to note 1.2 "Insurance liabilities". The tables below illustrates the effect of an adjustment to the claims loss ratio on gross IBNR liabilities and on IBNR liabilities net of reinsurance assets.

(Figures in N\$ '000)	Base	10% Loss Ratio increase	10% Loss Ratio decrease	5% Loss Ratio increase	5% Loss Ratio decrease
Fire and engineering	26 950	34 086	20 607	30 121	23 778
Guarantee	166	246	85	206	125
Liability	13 831	18 704	9 709	16 128	11 541
Marine	4 035	5 111	3 053	4 573	3 530
Medical	53	58	47	55	50
Miscellaneous	12 647	15 437	9 856	14 042	11 251
Motor	3 894	6 812	976	5 353	2 435
Personal lines	12 560	14 574	10 547	13 567	11 554
Facultative all lines	19 773	24 880	14 666	22 326	17 219
Total	93 909	119 908	69 546	106 371	81 483

(Registration number 99/369)

-Prospective

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Net IBNR	_				
(Figures in N\$ '000)	Base	10% Loss Ratio increase	10% Loss Ratio decrease	5% Loss Ratio increase	5% Loss Ratio decrease
Fire and engineering	22 426	28 702	17 634	25 287	19 566
Guarantee	136	202	70	169	103
Liability	13 518	17 854	9 709	15 589	11 454
Marine	3 361	4 257	2 530	3 809	2 936
Medical	53	58	47	55	50
Miscellaneous	10 015	12 148	7 881	11 081	8 948
Motor	2 951	5 031	870	3 991	1 910
Personal lines	8 846	10 266	7 425	9 556	8 135
Facultative all lines	14 114	17 759	10 468	15 936	12 291
Total	75 420	96 277	56 634	85 473	65 393

### Sensitivity analysis for long-term insurance liabilities

The following table contains the results gross of reinsurance of the valuation of various sensitivity scenarios on the life business IBNR results.

Liability							
	Base		Withdrawals	Claims	Claims	IBNR	IBNR
(Figures in N\$ '000)		+1%	+10%	+10%	-10%	+1month	-1month
Legal Cessions	22 131	22 119	22 115	24 382	20 362	25 488	18 780
-IBNR	16 825	16 825	16 825	17 114	16 825	20 182	13 474
-Prospective	5 306	5 294	5 290	7 268	3 537	5 306	5 306
Policy Cessions	51 225	51 188	51 200	61 655	48 731	57 538	44 912
-IBNR	43 037	43 037	43 037	49 093	42 404	49 350	36 724
-Prospective	8 188	8 151	8 163	12 562	6 327	8 188	8 188
Change from base							
-	Base	Economic	Withdrawals	Claims	Claims	IBNR	IBNR
(Figures in N\$ '000)		+1%	+10%	+10%	-10%	+1month	-1month
Legal Cessions	-	(12)	(16)	2 250	(1 769)	3 357	(3 351)
-IBNR	-	-	-	289	-	3 357	(3 351)
-Prospective	-	(12)	(16)	1 961	(1 769)	-	-
Policy Cessions	-	(37)	(25)	10 430	(2 494)	6 313	(6 313)
-IBNR	-	-	-	6 056	(633)	6 313	(6 313)
		·	()				

The following table contains the results net of reinsurance of the valuation of various sensitivity scenarios on the life business IBNR results.

(37)

(25)

4 374

(1 861)

-

Liability							
	Base		Withdrawals	Claims	Claims	IBNR	IBNR
(Figures in N\$ '000)		+1%	+10%	+10%	-10%	+1month	-1month
Legal Cessions	7 978	7 986	7 966	8 625	7 389	8 806	7 150
-IBNR	4 075	4 075	4 075	4 133	4 075	4 903	3 247
-Prospective	3 903	3 911	3 891	4 492	3 314	3 903	3 903
Policy Cessions	15 114	15 131	15 095	17 416	13 898	16 377	13 852
-IBNR	8 607	8 607	8 607	9 819	8 481	9 870	7 345
-Prospective	6 507	6 524	6 488	7 597	5 417	6 507	6 507

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 3. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

#### Change from base

(Figures in N\$ '000)	Base	Economic +1%	Withdrawals +10%	Claims +10%	Claims -10%	IBNR +1month	IBNR -1month
Legal Cessions	-	9	(12)	647	(589)	829	(827)
-IBNR	-	-	-	58	-	829	(827)
-Prospective	-	9	(12)	589	(589)	-	-
Policy Cessions	-	17	(20)	2 301	(1 217)	1 263	(1 263)
-IBNR	-	-	-	1 211	(127)	1 263	(1 263)
-Prospective	-	17	(20)	1 090	(1 090)	-	-

### 4. Fair value information

### Fair value hierarchy

Financial Instruments are classified into different levels based on the method used to determine their fair value (valuation method).

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on quoted market prices at period end. Quoted prices are readily available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The corporation does not have any level 1 financial instruments

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments which do not trade in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques. The valuation techniques are based on market data. Level 2 instruments comprise the following:

- Collective Investment Schemes; and
- Debt and short-term money market instruments where the value of the investments is based on the quoted price from the asset managers for similar instruments.

Level 3: If inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Instruments classified in level 3 are government bonds held at amortised cost with predetermined rates. It is therefore assumed that the carrying value of these instruments is equal to their fair value.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value.

Levels of fair value measurements

Level 2

**Recurring fair value measurements** 

Assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit (loss) Money market instruments	8	295 151	279 411
Total	-	295 151	279 411
Level 3			
Recurring fair value measurements			
Assets			
Investments held to maturity			
Bonds	7	29 099	28 974
Fixed deposits	7	-	27 938
Total investments held to maturity		29 099	56 912

## Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

		2022	2021 Restated *
		N\$ '000	N\$ '000
4. Fair value information (continued)			
Financial assets (loans and receivables)			
Reinsurance assets	9	157 698	94 128
Insurance and other receivables	10	349 022	224 629
Staff loans and other prepayments	13	1 445	1 535
Cash and cash equivalents	14	71 177	12 933
Total financial assets (loans and receivables)	-	579 342	333 225
Liabilities			
Financial liabilities at amortised cost			
Reinsurance and other payables	20	178 544	60 353
Insurance liabilities	21	360 440	436 094
Provisions	22	175 653	-
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost	-	714 637	496 447
Total	-	(106 196)	(106 310)

### 5. Property, plant and equipment

		2022			2021		
	Cost or revaluation	Accumulated depreciation	Carrying value	Cost or revaluation	Accumulated depreciation	Carrying value	
Land	4 448	-	4 448	4 448	-	4 448	
Buildings	36 650	(1 939)	34 711	36 650	(1 267)	35 383	
Furniture and fixtures	2 661	(2 210)	451	2 655	(1 953)	702	
Motor vehicles	1 204	(741)	463	1 204	(759)	445	
Office equipment	726	(280)	446	731	(143)	588	
IT equipment	4 201	(2 159)	2 042	3 053	(1 586)	1 467	
Total	49 890	(7 329)	42 561	48 741	(5 708)	43 033	

### Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022

	Opening balance	Additions	Disposals	Depreciation	Total
Land	4 448	-	-	-	4 448
Buildings	35 383	-	-	(672)	34 711
Furniture and fixtures	702	6	-	(257)	451
Motor vehicles	445	-	-	18	463
Office equipment	588	3	(1)	(144)	446
IT equipment	1 467	1 694	(74)	(1 045)	2 042
	43 033	1 703	(75)	(2 100)	42 561

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
N\$ '000	Restated * N\$ '000
 110 000	110 000

### 5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

### Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

	Opening ba <b>l</b> ance	Additions	Disposals	Revaluations	Depreciation	Total
Land	4 448	-	-	-	-	4 448
Buildings	33 160	2 380	-	490	(647)	35 383
Furniture and fixtures	815	244	(7)	-	(350)	702
Motor vehicles	428	-	-	-	17	445
Office equipment	215	465	-	-	(92)	588
IT equipment	1 889	377	-	-	(799)	1 467
	40 955	3 466	(7)	490	(1 871)	43 033
Depreciation rates						

Land		Not depreciated
Buildings	Straight line basis - years	50
Furniture and fixtures	Straight line basis - years	5
Motor vehicles	Straight line basis - years	4
Office equipment	Straight line basis - years	3
IT equipment	Straight line basis - years	3

### Revaluations

The valuation of land and buildings is done on a triennial basis by an independent, professional, recognised valuator with sufficient experience in the locations and segments of the property being valued. At 31 March 2021, Mr FA Frank - Schultz valued land and buildings at N\$ 36.7 million. The next independent valuation will be done during the 2024 financial year.

The carrying value of land and buildings under the cost model would have been N\$ 34.1 million (2021 N\$ 34.8 million).

Land is measured using the revaluation model model in terms of IAS 16: Property, plant and equipment. The company carries land, at the fair value on the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The key variable which affects the value of the land is the estimated sellable land rate per square metre of N\$ 3 750.

### Sensitivity analysis

The effect of a 5% change in the estimated sellable land rate per square metre will result in the recoverable amount of land increase/decrease by N\$ 2.0 million (2021: N\$ 2.0 million).

### Details of properties

Land and buildings consist of a property situated on ERF 8571 registered under title deed T2114/2011, Corner of Lazarett Street and Feld Street, Windhoek, Namibia. The property measures 1,949 square metres in size.

### 6. Intangible assets

		2022			2021	
	Cost	Accumulated amortisation	Carrying value	Cost	Accumulated amortisation	Carrying value
Computer software	11 578	(2 408)	9 170	11 558	(1 250)	10 308

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

			2022	2021 Restated *
			N\$ '000	N\$ '000
6. Current tax receivable (continued)				
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2022				
	Opening balance	Additions	Amortisation	Total
Computer software	10 308	19	(1 157)	9 170
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2021				
	Opening balance	Additions	Amortisation	Total
Computer software	11 145	292	(1 129)	10 308
7. Investments held to maturity				
<b>Held to maturity financial instruments</b> Republic of Namibia Government bonds (Baa3) Standard Bank Fixed deposit account (BB+)			29 099	28 974 27 938
			29 099	56 912

### Fair value information

The fair value of fixed deposits is considered to approximate the carrying amount. No amounts are past due or considered impaired. All amounts are denominated in Namibian dollars.

### Risk exposure

The investments held by the company expose it to various risks, including credit risk, interest rate risk and price risk. Refer to note 3 Financial instruments and risk management for details of risk exposure and the processes and policies adopted to mitigate these risks.

### Government bonds disclosure information

Bond	Investment house	Purchase date	Maturity date	Yield	Coupon Rate		Carrying Amount
(Figure	es in N\$ '000)						
GC24	Cirrus Capital (Pty) Ltd	31 March 2016	15 October 2024	10.09%	10.50%	2 000	2 114
	Simonis Storm Securities (Pty) Ltd	31 March 2016	15 October 2024	10.00%	9.00%	10 000	10 536
GC25	Cirrus Capital (Pty) Ltd	31 March 2016	15 April 2025	10.31%	8.50%	9 750	9 679
GC25	PSG*	13 August 2020	15 April 2025	8.00%	8.50%	270	281
GC27	PSG*	13 August 2020	15 January 2027	8.15%	8.00%	220	222
GC32	Simonis Storm Securities (Pty) Ltd	23 October 2020	15 October 2032	10.23%	10.50%	5 350	5 252
GC32	PSG*	20 August 2020	15 April 2032	10.04%	9.00%	1 040	1 015
						28 630	29 099

\*PSG Wealth Management (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
8. Investments at fair value through profit or loss		
Level 2 fair value investments in funds with no credit ratings		
Bank Windhoek Money Market Investment Fund	3 445	2 275
Bank Windhoek Select Fund	51 076	49 048
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Income Fund	34 233	32 600
IJG Money Market Fund	26 763	25 647
Liberty Life Investment Policy	38 122	36 804
Momentum Diversified Income Fund	5 358	5 125
Old Mutual Namibia Income Fund	14 051	13 446
Old Mutual Namibia Money Fund	20 729	20 015
Old Mutual Nedbank Namibia Corporate Fund	4	4
PSG Collective Investment Scheme	31 785	29 737
PSG Money Market Fund	21 706	20 648
Sanlam Namibia Floating Rate Fund	27 407	26 290
Simonis Storm Arysteq Real Return Fund	16 945	15 898
Simonis Storm Money Market Fund	3 527	1 874
	295 151	279 411

These investments do not individually carry their own credit rating as they are made up of a portfolio of diversified assets which carry their own individual ratings. Prior to investment, management analyses the risk and only invests with reputable institutions. Refer to note 3 for information on risk management and to note 4 for fair value information.

All balances are denominated in Namibian dollars.

Reconciliation of level 2 financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss		
Opening balance	279 411	148 219
Additions at fair value	-	161 508
Disposals at fair value	-	(45 000)
Interest capitalised	3 722	6 355
Dividend capitalised	4 613	2 237
Coupon interest on government bonds	2 704	1 106
Fair value adjustments	5 145	5 332
Expenses	(444)	(346)
	295 151	279 411
9. Reinsurance assets		
Reinsurance asset receivable	157 698	94 128

No impairment loss was recognised by the corporation at year end (2021: N\$ nil), as the corporation is satisfied that receivables are fully recoverable. The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair value at the reporting date. No profits on inception of reinsurance contracts were earned during the year (2021: N\$ nil).

### 10. Insurance and other receivables

Premium insurance debtors Provision for doubtful debtors	349 022 -	218 203 (3 030)
Receivables	349 022	215 173 9 456
Total insurance and other receivables	349 022	224 629

Premium debtors are due from various reputable insurance companies. They do not have external credit ratings, however have been doing business with the corporation for longer than 6 months and have no defaulting history.

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

		2022	2021 Restated *
		N\$ '000	N\$ '000
10.	Insurance and other receivables (continued)		
Inclu	uded in receivables is an amount owing by a related party, refer to note 33 for further details.		
Cate	egorisation of trade and other receivables		
Trac	le and other receivables are categorised as follows:		
Loai	ns and receivables	349 022	224 629
Exp	osure to credit risk		
Cree	dit risk disclosures		
Cree	dit quality of insurance and other receivables		
	credit quality of insurance and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor imp rence to historical information about counterparty default rates.	aired can be a	ssessed by
Prer	nium debtors of short-term insurance		
	nterparties without external credit rating up 2	349 022	224 629
Grou	up 1 – new customer (less 6 months).		
Grou	up 2 – existing customer with more than 6 months' history with the company and no defaults	in the past.	
Grou	up 3 – existing customer (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past.		
Trac	e and other receivables past due but not impaired		
	rance and other receivables that are not past their contractual due dates for payme airment.	ent are not con	sidered for
Con	tracts past their contractual due dates	-	3 030
Insu	rrance and other receivables impaired		
The	ageing of these amounts past due and impaired is as follows:		
	tracts within their contractual due dates tracts past their contractual due dates	-	
Rec	onciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables		
	ening balance sed amounts reversed	<b>(3 030)</b> 3 030	(3 030
Unu			

Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 3 for details of currency risk management for trade receivables.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

N\$ '000 10 886	Restated * N\$ '000
10 886	/
10 886	
10 886	
	15 235
15 235	3 898
(3 890)	-
(10 451)	-
(8)	-
-	(3 898)
10 000	15 235
10 886	15 235
-	3 898
	11 337
(451)	-
10 886	15 235
31 160	2 786
(13 622)	28 374
17 538	31 160
	(3 890) (10 451) (8) 10 000 10 886 11 337 (451) 10 886 31 160 (13 622)

### 13. Staff loans, deposits and other prepayments

Staff loans advanced	1 405	1 021
Deposits and prepayments	40	514
	1 445	1 535

The balances are denominated in Namibian dollars. No amounts are past due and have no indication of impairment. The carrying amounts approximate the fair values of the balances due to their short term nature.

Staff loans are amounts that have been advanced to staff members of the corporation in line with the corporation's staff welfare policy. The balances are denominated in Namibian dollars. No amounts are past due and have no indication of impairment. The carrying amounts approximate the fair values of the balances due to their short-term nature.

Refer to note 3 for information on credit risk.

Refer to note 33 for information on related parties.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021 Restated * N\$ '000
N\$ '000	
1	1
12 554	1 250
58 622	11 682
71 177	12 933
	N\$ '000 1 12 554 58 622

All deposits are less than 90 days.

### Credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates:

### Credit rating

	71 176	12 931
AA - Bank Windhoek Limited	13 299	2 316
AAA - First National Bank of Namibia Limited	57 877	10 615
erealtrainig		

### Exposure to currency risk

Included in the bank balances is a USD-denominated bank balance. The total loss on exchange differences recognised in profit or loss for the period under review is N\$ 0.3 million.

Refer to note 3 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of currency risk management for cash and cash equivalents.

### 15. Share capital

### Authorised

20 000 000 ordinary shares of N\$1 each	20 000	20 000
<b>Issued</b> 20 000 000 ordinary shares of N\$1 each	20 000	20 000

### 16. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to revaluations performed on land and building every 3 years. Refer to note 5 for information on land and buildings.

Opening balance	5 792	5 459
Fair value adjustment for the period Deferred tax on fair value movement	-	490 (157)
	5 792	5 792

### 17. Staff welfare reserve

A staff welfare fund is required to be maintained in terms of section 29 of the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Act, 1998. The annual amount transferred to the fund may not exceed 5% of the net profit after tax of the corporation for the financial year.

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

### Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
N\$ '000	Restated * N\$ '000
110 000	110 000

### 17. Staff welfare reserve (continued)

The reserve shall be utilised for recreation facilities, low interest-bearing loans and any other purposes aimed at enhancing the employees' welfare of the corporation.

Opening balance	1 735	3 791
Utilised during the year	(502)	(2 056)
	1 233	1 735

### 18. General reserve

In terms of the section 28 of the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Act, 1998, the corporation is required to maintain a general reserve into which it shall deposit at the end of the each financial year end an amount equal to 50% of the net profit before tax for the year provided the general reserve fund is less than the authorised share capital of the corporation. Alternatively, should the general reserve be equal to or exceed the authorised share capital of the corporation, then 25% of the net profit before tax must be transferred to the reserve.

Opening balance Utilised during the year	102 821 -	96 579 6 242
	102 821	102 821
19. Deferred tax		
Deferred tax liability		
Deferred tax liability	(18 383)	(15 995)
Deferred tax asset		
Other deferred tax asset		7 320

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred tax liability Deferred tax asset	(18 383) -	(15 995) 7 320
Total net deferred tax (liability)	(18 383)	(8 675)
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)		
At beginning of year Temporary differences on property, plant and equipment Temporary differences on prepayments Temporary differences on accruals Temporary differences on deferred acquisition costs Temporary differences on income in advance Temporary differences on insurance and other receivables	$(8 675) \\(1 062) \\151 \\(1 100) \\4 478 \\(11 540) \\(635)$	6 808 (1 545) 17 173 (7 139) (7 624) 635
	(18 383)	(8 675)
Expected release of deferred tax asset Within 12 months	<u>-</u>	7 320

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

### Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
19. Deferred tax (continued)		
Expected release of deferred tax liability	(4.455)	(100)
Within 12 months After 12 months	(1 155) (17 228)	(138) (15 857)
	(18 383)	(15 995)
20. Reinsurance and other payables		
Reinsurance payables	151 664	32 785
Reinsurance deferred acquisition costs	6 665	6 291
Other payables	20 215	21 277
	178 544	60 353

#### Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 3 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of currency risk management for trade payables.

### 21. Insurance liabilities

### Reconciliation of insurance liabilities - 2022

	Opening balance	Additions	Transfer to provisions	Total
Provision for unearned premiums (refer to 21.1)	104 076	7 436	-	111 512
Provision for outstanding claims (refer to 21.2)	37 799	43 865	-	81 664
Provision for claims incurred but not reported, IBNR (refer to 21.3)	118 566	48 698	-	167 264
Insurance contract liability (refer to 21.5)	175 653	-	(175 653)	-
	436 094	99 999	(175 653)	360 440

### **Reconciliation of insurance liabilities - 2021**

	Opening balance	Additions	Utilised during the year	Total
Provision for unearned premiums (refer to 21.1)	35 251	68 825	-	104 076
Provision for outstanding claims (refer to 21.2)	5 624	37 799	(5 624)	37 799
Provision for claims incurred but not reported, IBNR (refer to 21.3)	116 643	24 090	(22 167)	118 566
Provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure (refer to 21.4)	879	-	(879)	-
Insurance contract liability (refer to 21.5)	168 993	175 653	(168 993)	175 653
	327 390	306 367	(197 663)	436 094
Long-term insurance contracts			74 735	9 716
Short-term insurance contracts			285 705	426 378
			360 440	436 094

### Insurance contract liability

The insurance contract liability relates to a liability which was calculated as 12.5% of the experience account balance held by the cedent as of 31 March 2021. In the current year the amount was disputed by the cedent and was subsequently transferred to provisions. Refer to note 22 for further information.

## Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
	Restated *
N\$ '000	N\$ '000

### 21. Insurance liabilities (continued)

The liabilities arising from insurance contracts are expected to be settled as disclosed in the following tables. The cash flows are undiscounted:

Estimated timing of outflows: 2022 Long-term insurance contracts	2 - 5 years -	<b>Over 5 years</b> 74 735	<b>Total</b> 74 735
Short-term insurance contracts	285 705	-	285 705
	285 705	74 735	360 440
Estimated timing of outflows: 2021 Long-term insurance contracts	2 - 5 years -	<b>Over 5 years</b> 9 716	<b>Total</b> 9 716
Short-term insurance contracts	426 378	-	426 378
	426 378	9 716	436 094
21.1 Gross provision for unearned premiums			
Balance beginning of the year		104 076	35 251
Movement for the year		7 436	68 825
		111 512	104 076
<b>•</b> • • • • • •			
<b>21.1(a) Net unearned premium reserve</b> Balance beginning of the year		66 247	20 864
Movement for the year		1 462	45 383
		67 709	66 247
The balance comprises			
Gross provision for unearned premiums		111 512	104 076
Reinsurer's share of unearned premiums		(43 803)	(37 829)
		67 709	66 247
21.2 Provision for outstanding claims			
Balance beginning of the year		37 799	5 624
Movement for the year		43 865	32 175
		81 664	37 799
Provision for outstanding claims ceded to reinsurers			
Balance beginning of the year		(6 608)	(8)
Movement for the year		(38 533)	(6 601)
		(45 141)	(6 609)
Net provision for outstanding claims		36 523	31 190

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
21. Insurance liabilities (continued)		
21.3 Provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)	110 500	110.010
Balance beginning of the year Movement for the year	118 566 48 698	116 643 1 923
	167 264	118 566
Reinsurance provision for claims incurred but not reported		
Balance beginning of the year	(49 689) (19 065)	(35 906)
Movement for the year	(19 003)	(13 783) (49 689)
Net provision for claims incurred but not reported	98 510	68 877
<b>21.4 Provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure</b> Balance beginning of the year	-	879
Incurred short-term Utilised during the year	-	- (879)
	-	-
Reinsurance provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure		
Balance beginning of the year Utilised/(incurred)	-	-
		-
Net provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure	-	-
21.5 Insurance contract liability		
Balance beginning of the year	175 653	168 993
Movement for the year Transfer to provisions	(175 653)	6 660 -
		175 653
Reinsurance for insurance contract liability		
Balance beginning of the year Utilised/(incurred) during the year	-	-
	-	-
Net insurance contract liability	-	175 653

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
	Restated *
N\$ '000	N\$ '000

### 22. Provisions

**Reconciliation of provisions - 2022** 

	Opening balance	Transfer from insurance liabilities	Total
Insurance contract liability		- 175 653	175 653

The insurance contract liability relates to a liability which is currently under dispute with a local insurance company.

While the particular cedent was complying with the notices and regulations contained in Government Notices 332 - 338 as gazetted on 29 December 2017 for their Alternative risk transfer business, the company ceded 12.5% of their experience account book to the corporation while also ceding 12.5% for full premiums.

The corporation is of the opinion that the cession method was incorrect and as such the corrected treatment should be applied retrospectively for this business. The cedent in question is also of the view that the cession was done incorrectly but want this applied prospectively. The corporation is currently in negotiations with the cedent on this and management has decided to raise a provision for the possible exposure on this dispute.

The provision was calculated as 12.5% of the experience account balance held by the cedent as of 31 March 2021. There is no movement of the balance for the 2022 financial year as management has assessed the provision to still be adequate. Please refer to note 34.2 (Contingent asset) for related contingent asset raised.

### 23. Net insurance premium revenue

Long term insurance contracts Premium receivables Change in unearned premium Short term insurance contracts	123 018 (1 378)	68 271 -
Premium receivables	645 179	394 422
Change in pipeline premium	29 973	162 179
Change in unearned premium	(43 887)	(68 825)
Gross earned premiums	752 905	556 047
Short-term reinsurance contract:		
– Premium payables	(249 753)	(165 071)
- Change in unearned premium provision	42 782	23 442
Long-term reinsurance contracts	(97 715)	(54 617)
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts issued	1 021	-
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers	(303 665)	(196 246)
Net insurance premium revenue	449 240	359 801

Refer to note 36(a) for further information on the impact of restatement on insurance premium income.

### 24. Other income

Commission income	71 705	102 018
Sundry income	363	171
	72 068	102 189

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

24. Other income (continued)         Summary of commission income         Movement in deferred acquisition costs         Commission income         Zommission income         Dividend income         Data in dother cash         18         Interest income         Leans ato         Directors, managers and employees         18         19         Stank and other cash         1180       2 702         Other financial assets         Bank and other cash         100 286         701       102 286         702       (100 760)         (300 671)       (60 633)         100 286       (191 764)         100 760)       (300 671)         Short-term insurance       (191 764)         100 760)       (300 671)         Short-term insurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       150 929         Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       150 929         Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims inc		2022	2021 Restated *
Summary of commission income         703         (6.063)           Movement in deferred acquisition costs         76.998         108.081           Z5. Investment income         77.701         102.018           Z5. Investment income         23.3         23.3           Dividend income         4.613         2.237           Interest income         4.613         2.237           Interest income         4.613         2.237           Interest income         4.613         2.237           Interest income         1.8         14           Investments in financial assets:         8.519         10.286           Bark and other cash         1.180         2.702           Other financial assets         8.519         10.286           Total interest income         9.717         13.002           Z6. Net benefits and claims         (191.764)         (100.760)           Short-term insurance         (191.764)         (100.760)           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150.929         52.843           Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         120.837         (25.822)           Colrase in provision for claims IBNR         (31.793)         22.167           Change in insuranc		N\$ '000	
Movement in deferred acquisition costs         703         16 6633           Commission income         77 701         102 018           25. Investment income         77 701         102 018           Dividend income         1000 001         102 018           Dividend income         18         14           Directors, managers and employees         18         14           Interest income         1180         2 702           Other financial assets:         8 519         10 286           Total interest income         9 717         13 002           Other financial assets         8 519         10 286           Total interest income         14 330         15 239           26. Net benefits and claims         100 7600         100 7600           Short-term insurance         (191 764)         (100 7600           Short-term insurance         (308 671)         (66 654)           20 Gross change in insurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 8432           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 8432           Change in provision for outstanding claims         (43 865)         (32 175)           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929	24. Other income (continued)		
Commission income         76 998         108 081           77 701         102 018           25. Investment income         100 011           Dividend income         4 613         2 237           Interest income         4 613         2 237           Directors, managers and employees         18         14           Investments in financial assets:         8 519         10 266           Bark and other cash         9 717         13 002           Other financial assets         9 717         13 002           Total interest income         9 717         13 002           Total investment income         14 330         15 239           26. Net benefits and claims incurred         (300 8671)         (66 054)           Short-term insurance         (191 764)         (100 760)           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 843           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 843           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 843           Charge in provision for curstanding claims         (31 783)         22 167           Charge in provision for curstanding claims         (43 865)         (32 175) <tr< td=""><td>Summary of commission income</td><td>700</td><td>(0.000)</td></tr<>	Summary of commission income	700	(0.000)
25. Investment income       Dividend income         Dividend income received on money market investments       4 613       2 237         Interest income       Lans to:       Interest income       18       14         Loans to:       Directors, managers and employees       18       14       14       2 702         Other financial assets:       Bank and other cash       8 519       10 286       717       13 002         Total interest income       9 717       13 002       713 002       717       13 002         Total investment income       14 330       15 239       717       13 002       717       713 002         26. Net benefits and claims       1160 7600       (190 760)       (190 760)       717       73 002       72 8       717       73 002       72 8       717       73 002       72 8       73 002       72 8       717       73 002       72 8       717       73 002       72 8       717       73 002       72 8       73 002       72 8       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       73 002       7	•		· · · ·
Dividend income       4 613       2 237         Interest income       2       237         Loans to:       18       14         Interest income       8 519       10 286         Loans to:       1180       2 702         Other financial assets:       8 519       10 286         Dotal interest income       9 717       13 002         Total interest income       9 717       13 002         Total investment income       14 330       15 239         26. Net benefits and claims       100 7600       (306 671)       (66 054)         Long-term insurance       (191 764)       (100 760)       (306 671)       (66 054)         Short-term insurance       150 929       52 843       (25 822)       (25 822)         Corross change in provision for claims incurred       150 929       52 843       (25 822)         Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       120 837       (25 822)       (27 1766       27 021         c) Gross change in provision for claims IBNR       (43 865)       (32 175)       (24 800)       (24 800)       (24 820)       (24 820)       (24 820)       (39 879)         Change in provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure       (51 915)       (24 800)       (24		77 701	102 018
Dividend income received on money market investments       4 613       2 237         Interest income Loans to: Directors, managers and employees       18       14         Investments in financial assets:       1 180       2 702         Bank and other cash       1 180       2 702         Other financial assets:       8 519       10 286         Total interest income       9 717       13 002         Total investment income       14 330       15 239         Z6. Net benefits and claims       (100 760)         Short-lerm insurance       (191 764)       (100 760)         Short-lerm insurance       (308 671)       (66 054)         Diag-term reinsurance       (191 764)       (100 760)         Short-lerm reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       150 929       52 843         Cong-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       150 929       52 843         Short-lerm change in provision for claims IBNR       (31 793)       (21 68 65)       (32 175)         Short-lerm change in provision for claims IBNR       (31 793)       (22 163)       (24 090)         Change in provision for claims IBNR       (51 915)       (24 090)       -       8 79         Change in insurance liabilities       (46 600)       -       8 79	25. Investment income		
Loans to: Directors, managers and employees1814Directors, managers and employees1814Direstments in financial assets: Bank and other cash11802702Bank and other cash11802702Other financial assets971713 002Total investment income971713 002Total investment income14 33015 23926. Net benefits and claims1160(100 760)a) Gross benefits and claims incurred Long-term insurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-lerm insurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-lerm reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-lerm reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Change in provision for claims IBNR(14 680)-Change in provision for claims IBNR(14 680)-Change in provision for claims IBNR38 5326 601Short-lerm change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784 <td>Dividend income Dividend income received on money market investments</td> <td>4 613</td> <td>2 237</td>	Dividend income Dividend income received on money market investments	4 613	2 237
Directors, managers and employees1814Investments in financial assets: Bank and other cash1 1802 702Other financial assets8 51910 286Total interest income9 71713 002Total interest income14 33015 239Z6. Net benefits and claims11802 702a) Gross benefits and claims incurred Long-term insurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-term insurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-term reinsurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-term insurance150 92952 843Cong-term insurance150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822)271 76627 02127 176627 021c) Gross change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Change in provision for claims IBNR- 87966 600(142 253)(39 879)-(1480)d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers-679Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers-879Change in provision for claims IBNR38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Change in provision for c	Interest income		
Investments in Tinancial assets: Bank and other cash Other financial assets1 180 2 702 0 286Total interest income9 71713 002Total interest income9 71713 002Total investment income14 33015 23926. Net benefits and claims11 16010 286a) Gross benefits and claims incurred Long-term insurance(191 764)(100 760) (308 671)Short-term reinsurance(191 764)(100 760) (308 671)(66 054)b) Claims ceded to reinsurers Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance insurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822)271 76627 02127 17 6627 021c) Gross change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for claims IBNR C	Loans to: Directors, managers and employees	18	14
Other financial assets         8 519         10 286           Total interest income         9 717         13 002           Total investment income         14 330         15 239           Z6. Net benefits and claims         14 330         15 239           Z6. Net benefits and claims incurred         (191 764)         (100 760)           Long-term insurance         (191 764)         (100 760)           Short-term insurance         (191 764)         (100 760)           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 843           Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred         150 929         52 843           Change in provision for cutstanding claims         (43 865)         (32 175)           Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR         (43 865)         (32 175)           Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR         (51 915)         (24 090)           Change in provision for claims IBNR         (51 915)         (24 090)           Change in provision for claims IBNR         (51 915)         (24 090)           Change in provision for claims IBNR         (51 915)         (24 090)           Change in provision for claims IBNR         (51 915)         (24 090)           Change in provision for claims IBNR         (	Investments in financial assets:	1 100	0 700
Total investment income14 33015 23926. Net benefits and claimsa) Gross benefits and claims incurredLong-term insurance(191 764)(100 760)Short-term insurance(308 671)(66 054)b) Claims ceded to reinsurersLong-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(26 822)271 76627 02127 176627 021c) Gross change in insurance liabilities(31 793)22 167Change in provision for outstanding claims(31 793)22 167Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers-(66 660)Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR14 84913 784Long-term change in provision for claims	Other financial assets		
26. Net benefits and claims         a) Gross benefits and claims incurred         Long-term insurance       (191 764)       (100 760)         Short-term insurance       (308 671)       (66 054)         b) Claims ceded to reinsurers       (500 435)       (166 814)         Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       150 929       52 843         Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred       120 837       (25 822)         C) Gross change in insurance liabilities       271 766       27 021         c) Gross change in provision for claims IBNR       (31 793)       22 167         Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR       (51 915)       (24 090)         Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve       (14 680)       -         Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve       (14 680)       -         Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers       38 532       6 600)         c) Change in provision for outstanding claims       38 532       6 600)         d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers       38 532       6 600)         Change in provision for claims IBNR       18 489       13 784         Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR       18 489       13 784         Long-term change in pr	Total interest income	9 717	13 002
a) Gross benefits and claims incurred Long-term insurance (191 764) (100 760) (308 671) (66 054) (500 435) (166 814) b) Claims ceded to reinsurers Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 150 929 52 843 Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 120 837 (25 822) 271 766 27 021 c) Gross change in insurance liabilities Change in provision for claims IBNR Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR Change in insurance contract liabilities Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers Change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for claims IBNR Chan	Total investment income	14 330	15 239
Long-term insurance(191 764) (308 671) (66 054)Short-term insurance(500 435) (166 814)b) Claims ceded to reinsurers Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 929 120 837 (25 822)c) Gross change in insurance liabilities Change in provision for outstanding claims(43 865) (31 793) (22 167)c) Gross change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(41 680) (14 680) (14 680)c) Change in insurance liabilities Change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680) (14 2 253)d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers Change in provision for claims IBNR Change in provi	26. Net benefits and claims		
Short-term insurance(308 671)(66 054)b) Claims ceded to reinsurers150 92952 843Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822)c) Gross change in insurance liabilities271 76627 021c) Gross change in provision for outstanding claims(43 865)(32 175)Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)(39 879)d) Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for claim	a) Gross benefits and claims incurred		
b) Claims ceded to reinsurers Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 150 929 52 843 Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 150 929 52 843 Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 120 837 (25 822) 271 766 27 021 c) Gross change in insurance liabilities Change in provision for claims IBNR (31 793) 22 167 Change in provision for claims IBNR (51 915) (24 090) Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve (14 680) - Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers Change in provision for outstanding claims d) Change in provision for outstanding claims Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR (142 253) (39 879) d) Change in provision for claims IBNR 38 532 6 601 Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR 45 906 - Change in provision for claims IBNR 45 906 - Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve 4 359 -	Long-term insurance		(100 760)
Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822) <b>271 76627 021c) Gross change in insurance liabilities</b> Change in provision for claims IBNR(43 865)(32 175)Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liabilities-(6660) <b>(142 253)(39 879)(39 879)d) Change in provision</b> for claims IBNR38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-Change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-			(166 814)
Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred150 92952 843Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822) <b>271 76627 021c) Gross change in insurance liabilities</b> Change in provision for claims IBNR(43 865)(32 175)Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liabilities-(6660) <b>(142 253)(39 879)(39 879)d) Change in provision</b> for claims IBNR38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-Change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-			
Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred120 837(25 822)271 76627 021c) Gross change in insurance liabilitiesChange in provision for outstanding claims(43 865)(32 175)Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers-(6660)(142 253)(39 879)(39 879)d) Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for claims IBNR435 9-		150 929	52 843
c) Gross change in insurance liabilitiesChange in provision for outstanding claims(43 865)(32 175)Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure-879Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers-(6 660)Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-	Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred		(25 822)
Change in provision for outstanding claims(43 865)(32 175)Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liability-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)d) Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-		271 766	27 021
Change in provision for outstanding claims(43 865)(32 175)Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR(31 793)22 167Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liability-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)d) Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for claims IBNR43 59-	c) Gross change in insurance liabilities		
Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR(51 915)(24 090)Change in provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure-879Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liability-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)d) Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-	Change in provision for outstanding claims		(32 175)
Change in provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenditure-879Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liability-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers(142 253)(39 879)Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-			
Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve(14 680)-Change in insurance contract liability-(6 660)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(39 879)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(142 253)(14 680)- <td></td> <td>(51 915)</td> <td></td>		(51 915)	
d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurersChange in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-	Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve	(14 680)	-
d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurersChange in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-	Change in insurance contract liability		(6 660)
Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-		(142 253)	(39 879)
Change in provision for outstanding claims38 5326 601Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR18 48913 784Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906-Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359-	d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers		
Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR45 906Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve4 359	Change in provision for outstanding claims		
Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve 4 359 -	8 1		13 784
	Change in provision for long-term deficiency reserve		-
		107 286	20 385

## Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
27. Commission paid		
Commission paid	181 011	233 116
Summary of commission paid		
Movement in deferred acquisition costs Commission paid	(13 621) 196 373	(28 373) 261 489
	182 752	233 116

### 28. Operating profit (loss)

Results of operating activities for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

### **Employee costs**

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits	23 702	25 450
Housing benefit	5 870	5 251
Travel allowance	264	244
Motor vehicle allowance	5 987	8 772
Termination benefits	2 133	1 930
Total employee costs	37 956	41 647

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
	Restated *
N\$ '000	N\$ '000

### 28. Operating profit (loss) (continued)

### Expenses by nature

The total cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses, research and development expenses, maintenance expenses and other operating expenses are analysed by nature as follows:

Actuary fees	604	560
Advertising	935	1 096
Annual duty	112	
Auditors remuneration - external auditors	1 049	1 141
Bank charges	168	164
Bad debts*	10 569	-
Bursaries	1 276	972
Business development	6 525	2 732
Cleaning	346	636
Computer expenses	59	49
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment	3 257	3 000
Donations and sponsorships	5 770	2 853
Employee costs - directors	852	1 002
Employee costs - salaried staff	37 104	40 645
Entertainment	374	329
Insurance	411	319
Investment expense	444	347
Legal expenses	3 494	4 196
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	8	11
Low value assets	22	61
Motor vehicle expenses	134	67
Municipal expenses	306	273
NAMFISA Levies	253	250
NTA Levies	383	355
Other consulting and professional fees	12 285	4 828
Other operating expenses not individually material	1 298	(8 942)
Postage	6	25
Printing and stationery	123	148
Provision for doubtful debtors	(3 030)	-
Repairs and maintenance	532	625
Security	157	151
Staff welfare	502	2 053
Subscriptions	783	625
Telephone and internet expenses	1 808	1 726
Training	342	1 594
	89 261	63 891

\*Bad debts are a result of the impairment of a receivable owed by the Ministry of Finance in the current year. The receivable related to the Government portion of legal fees in relation to the ongoing industrial action against the corporation.

Refer to note 36(a) for further information on the impact of restatement on commission paid.

Foreign exchange gains (losses) Net foreign exchange loss

(151) (1 299)

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
	Restated *
N\$ '000	N\$ '000

### 28. Operating profit (loss) (continued)

### 28.1 Legal fees

The Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Act, Act 22 of 1998 and Government Gazette No. 6496 stipulates that short-term and long-term insurance companies should cede 12.5% of every policy to the corporation as compulsory reinsurance, subject to specific exclusions and exemptions as prescribed in Government Gazette No. 6496. The Act and Government Gazette Notice are currently under legal dispute by some insurance companies in the courts of law, therefore only a number of insurers are presently complying, with the majority still disputing the regulation. The corporation's legal counsel and directors believe that a favourable outcome is probable, which will require all insurers registered in Namibia to comply with the regulation. The corporation has only recognised per policy cession business from complying insurance companies in its financial statements, no accrual has been recognised nor contingent asset for non-complying cedants.

### 29. Cash generated from operations

Profit before taxation Adjustments for:	6 724	24 969
Non-cash items	98 714	107 284
Depreciation	2 100	1 871
Amortisation	1 157	1 129
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment	8	-
Losses on foreign exchange	151	1 299
Fair value gains and other non-cash items	(5 145)	(6 065)
Movements in insurance liability	99 999	108 704
Management investment expenses	444	346
Dividend income	(4 613)	(2 237)
Interest income	(8 519)	(10 163)
	( )	( )
Changes in working capital:	(56 059)	12 016
Insurance and other receivables	(124 393)	117 253
Reinsurance assets	(63 570)	(43 827)
Deferred acquisition costs	Î13 622	(28 374)
Staff loans and other prepayments	90	(148)
Reinsurance and other payables	118 192	(32 888)
Cash generated from operations	36 247	131 869
30. Tax paid		
Balance at beginning of the year	15 235	3 898
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss	(10 451)	-
Balance at end of the year	(10 886)	(15 235)
	(6 102)	(11 337)
31. Dividends paid		
Balance at beginning of the year	-	(10 000)

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
32. Taxation		
Major components of the tax expense		
Current	214	
Long-term insurance business Short-term insurance business	10 237	-
	10 451	-
<b>Deferred</b> Originating and reversing temporary differences	9 708	15 326
	20 159	15 326
Reconciliation of the tax expense		
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.		
Accounting (loss) / profit	6 724	24 969
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 32% (2021: 32%)	2 152	7 990
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income	10 - 1-	
Deferred tax effect income Permanent differences	13 547 4 380	4 812 2 524
Prior period adjustment	4 380 80	- 2 524
	20 159	15 326

### 33. Related parties

Relationships	
Ultimate holding entity	Government of the Republic of Namibia
Holding entity	The Namibian Ministry of Finance
Directors	Refer to director's report
Holding entity	The Namibian Ministry of Finance

### **Related party balances**

Amount owing by (to) the Government of the Republic of Namibia		
Other receivables	-	8 238
Value-added tax	(12 117)	(20 370)
Current tax receivable (payable)	21 337	15 235
PAYE (employees' tax)	(511)	(459)
VAT on imported services	(2)	(20)
Withholding taxes	(1)	(1)
	8 706	2 623

Balances with related parties are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. However, balances in arrears incur interest and penalties as specified by the VAT, PAYE, Withholding tax and Income tax legislations.

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

	2022	2021 Restated *
	N\$ '000	N\$ '000
33. Related parties (continued)		
Amounts included in staff welfare loans regarding related parties		
Humavindu R.R.K	18	26
Francis F.C Shilongo H.A	18 17	26 26
Idjavera H.	24	20
Nampila T.V.O	19	2
Karuaihe-Martin P.A	-	9
Shumba T	-	7
Hamunyela L.S	-	26
	96	143
Amounts included in staff study loans regarding related parties		
Francis F.C	32	90
Humavindu R.R.K	-	2
Shumba T Shilongo H.A	-	192 2
		286
	32	200
Related party transactions		
Interest received from related parties Staff welfare loans	<u> </u>	(1)
		(1)
Receipts from the Government of the Republic of Namibia		
Income tax refunded	(3 890)	-
Payments to the Government of the Republic of Namibia		
_egal fees paid	1 197	(140
ncome tax paid	10 000	15 235
Agency payments: Value-added tax Agency payments: PAYE	19 517 8 159	37 786 9 411
/AT on imported services paid	177	324
Nithholding tax paid	9	20
	39 059	62 636
Powents to other related parties (Follow State Owned Entities)		
Payments to other related parties (Fellow State Owned Entities) Namibia Special Risks Insurance Association Ltd	68	270
Namibia Financial Institutions Supervisory Authority	1 879	375
	1 947	645
Comparison to directors		
Compensation to directors For services as directors	852	2 601
		2 001

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

### Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022	2021
	Restated *
N\$ '000	N\$ '000

### 34. Contingencies

#### 34.1 Contingent liabilities

### 34.1 (a) Pending legal cases

Contingent liabilities represent items that as at 31 March 2022 have not been recognised in the statement of financial position because there is significant uncertainty at that date as to the necessity for the corporation to make payments in respect of the legal case.

The corporation has the following legal cases pending:

- 1. Legal action against Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited concerning the notices requiring all companies in the insurance industry to cede business per policy level to Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited;
- 2. Legal action against Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited by the industry regarding the constitutionality of the Namibia National Reinsurance Act 1 of 1998; and
- Legal action by Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited against industry to compel insurance companies to comply with Notices and regulations contained in Government Notices 332 - 338 as gazetted on 29 December 2017.

The corporation's lawyers consider the extent of the exposure of the corporation to be limited to the applicants' legal costs. Accordingly, the corporation has a contingent liability in respect of legal costs of about N\$ 12 million (2021: N\$ 9 million) payable to the applicants in respect of its legal costs incurred.

### 34.1 (b) Claim resulting from incorrect treatment of ceded business

The corporation has a contingent liability related to a cedent who in the process of complying with the notices and regulations contained in Government Notices 332 - 338 as gazetted on 29 December 2017, has been submitting various returns since 2019. It is the view of the corporation that principles applied in the calculation and submission of these returns are incorrect. The corporation is in the process of negotiations with the cedant on the correct way of ceding business in line with the legislation. The total amount of this liability is N\$8,280,533 (After tax N\$ 5,630,762) as per the returns submitted by the cedent. The corporation expects to finalise this matter within the next 12 months.

### 34.2 Contingent asset

The corporation has a contingent asset related to a claim for the over-rider commission from a cedent. This claim is related to amounts which were deducted by the cedent regarding over-rider commission. This was when the cedent was in the process of compliance in terms of the notices and regulations contained in Government Notices 332 - 338 as gazetted on 29 December 2017. It is the view of the corporation that the cedent deducted over rider commission in a manner that is not in line with standard insurance practices in relation to alternate risk transfer business. The commission in this regard is related to the period June 2018 to 31 March 2021 and amounts to an estimated amount of N\$28,275,614 (after tax N\$ 19,227,417). This estimate does not take into account any time value of money. Please refer to note 22 for information related to the liability.

### 35. Commitments

### Authorised capital expenditure

### Already contracted for but not provided for

• Property, plant and equipment

This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by available bank facilities, retained profits, existing cash resources and funds internally generated.

9 900

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 36. Prior period errors

### (a) Error in classification of unearned premium reserve movement

In the previous financial period, unearned premium reserve movement was incorrectly classified as commission expense. The value of the misstatement in the financial statement line items was material and management resolved to correct the error retrospectively in line with the requirements of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:

### Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

	31 March 2021 Previously reported	Adjustment	31 March 2021 Restated
Gross earned premium	622 801	(66 200)	556 601
Commission expense	35 818	66 200	102 018

### (b) Error in disclosure of investment at fair value through profit or loss

In the previous financial periods, the corporation erroneously presented an investment at fair value through profit or loss as cash and cash equivalents. The value of the misstatement in the financial statement line items was material and management resolved to correct the error retrospectively in line with the requirements of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. No third column balance sheet was presented as required by IAS 8 by the corporation as the error is not material.

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:

### Statement of Financial Position

	31 March 2021 Previously reported	Adjustment	31 March 2021 Restated	31 March 2020 Previously reported	Adjustment	31 March 2020 Restated
Investments at fair value through profit or loss	277 537	1 874	279 411	147 076	1 143	148 219
Cash and cash equivalents	14 807	(1 874)	12 933	30 554	(1 143)	29 411

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 36. Prior period errors (continued)

### **Statements of Cash Flows**

	31 March 2021 Previously reported	Adjustment	31 March 2021 Restated
Cash flows from operations			
Profit before taxation	24 970	-	24 970
Adjustments for: Depreciation	1 871	_	1 871
Amortisation	1 129	_	1 129
Dividend income	(2 237)	_	(2 237)
Interest income	(10 163)	-	(10 163)
Fair value gains and other non-cash items	(5 334)	(731)	(6 065)
Movements in insurance liability	108 704	-	108 704
Expenses on investments	346	-	346
Losses on foreign exchange	1 299	-	1 299
Changes in working capital:			
Insurance and other receivables	117 253	-	117 253
Reinsurance assets	(43 827)	-	(43 827)
Deferred acquisition costs	(28 374)	-	(28 374)
Staff loans and other prepayments Reinsurance and other payables	(148) (32 889)	-	(148) (32 889)
	132 600	(731)	131 869
Cash flows from operating activities		(= 0.1)	
Cash generated from operations	132 600	(731)	131 869
Tax paid	(11 337)		(11 337)
Net cash from operating activities	121 263	(731)	120 532
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	(3 467)	-	(3 467)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment	6	-	6
Purchase of intangible assets	(292)	-	(292)
Purchase of investments of investments held to maturity	(6 500)	-	(6 500)
Proceeds on maturation of investments held to maturity	2 156	-	2 156
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss Proceeds on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	(162 614) 45 000	-	(162 614) 45 000
	(125 711)	-	(125 711)
Net cash from investing activities	(125711)	-	(125711)
Cash flows from financing activities	(40,000)		(10,000)
Dividends paid	(10 000)	-	(10 000)
Net cash from financing activities	(10 000)	-	(10 000)
Total cash movement for the year	(14 448)	(731)	(15 179)
Cash at the beginning of the year	30 554	(1 143)	29 411
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances	(1 299)		(1 299)
Total cash at end of the year	14 807	(1 874)	12 933

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 36. Prior period errors (continued)

	31 March 2020 Previously reported	3 Adjustment	31 March 2020 Restated
Cash flows from operations			
Profit before taxation Adjustments for:	39 947	-	39 947
Depreciation	1 282	-	1 282
Amortisation	191	-	191
Loss on disposal of assets	361	-	361
Dividend income	(859)	-	(859)
Interest income	(12 239)	-	(12 239)
Fair value gains and other non-cash items	(1 237)	(1 143)	(2 380)
Movements in insurance liability	177 659	-	177 659
Expenses on investments	294	-	294
Profit on foreign exchange	(2 657)	-	(2 657)
Changes in working capital:			
Insurance and other receivables	(277 413)	-	(277 413)
Reinsurance assets	40 588	-	40 588
Staff loans and other prepayments	(737)	-	(737)
Reinsurance and other payables	51 741	-	51 741
	16 921	(1 143)	15 778
Cash flows from operating activities Cash generated from operations Interest received Tax paid Net cash from operating activities	16 921 1 039 (29 086) (11 126)	(1 143) - - (1 143)	15 778 1 039 (29 086) (12 269)
Net cash from operating activities	(11 120)	(1 143)	(12 209)
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	(3 149)	-	(3 149)
Purchase of intangible assets	(4 918)	-	(4 918)
Proceeds on maturation of investments held to maturity	2 089	-	2 089
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss	(26 038)	-	(26 038)
Proceeds on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	25 613	-	25 613
Net cash from investing activities	(6 403)	-	(6 403)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Dividends paid	(6 150)	-	(6 150)
Net cash from financing activities	(6 150)	-	(6 150)
Total cash movement for the year	(23 679)	(1 143)	(24 822)
Cash at the beginning of the year	51 576	(···+0) -	51 576
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances	2 657	-	2 657
Total cash at the end of the year	30 554	(1 143)	29 411

(Registration number 99/369)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

## Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

### 37. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2022, the company has made a loss of N\$ (13 435) (2021: a profit of N\$ 9 643).

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. The corporation has prepared projections, covering its future performance, capital and liquidity for a period of 12 months from the date of this report. The corporation's projections and assessment show that the corporation has sufficient capital, liquidity and positive future performance outlook to continue to meet its short term obligations and as a result, it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis.

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The director directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.

### 38. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.